
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

SACRE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, WEDNESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2016 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Glynda O'Brien 

glyndaobrien@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

01341 424301 

(DISTRIBUTED: 26.10.16) 

Complete Agenda



 

SACRE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (7) 
 

Plaid Cymru (4) 
 

Councillors 
 

Annwen Daniels Gweno Glyn E. Selwyn Griffiths 

Sedd Wag 
 

Independent (2) 
 

Councillors 
Thomas G. Ellis Jean Forsyth 

 

Llais Gwynedd (1) 
 

Vacant Seat  
 

Aelodau Ex-officio / Ex-officio Members 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council  

 
 

Christians and Other Religions  
 

Awaiting Nomination Methodist Church 

Dr W Gwyn Lewis Presbyterian Church of Wales 

Canon Parchedig Robert Townsend Church in Wales 

Mrs Elizabeth Roberts Undeb Bedyddwyr Cymru 

Cynrig Hughes The Independents 

Eirian Bradley Roberts Catholic Church 

 

Teachers 
 

Alwen Watkin ASCL 

Miriam A. Amlyn NAS/UWT 

Cathryn Davey UCAC 

Heledd Owen NUT 

Awaiting Nomination ATL 

 

Aelodau Cyfetholedig / Co-Opted Members: 
Rheinallt Thomas  
Gwyn Rhydderch  
Parchedig Aled Davies  



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   PRAYER 
 
 

 

   
2.   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 
 

 To elect a Vice-chairman for this Committee for 2016/17. 

 
 

3.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

4.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

5.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration. 

 

 

6.   MINUTES 
 

6 - 9 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of SACRE held 
on 15 June 2016 be signed as a true copy. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

7.   GWYNEDD SACRE'S DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 
 

10 - 33 

 To consider a draft annual report for 2015/16 prior to publishing a final copy. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

8.   COLLECTIVE WORSHIP 
 

34 - 35 

 To consider a questionnaire for SACRE members when they visit a school’s 
collective worship session.  
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 

 

9.   WALES ASSOCIATION OF SACRE 
 

36 - 42 

 (a) To receive minutes of the Wales SACRE Association’s meeting held 
on the 23 June 2016 in Rhyl. 

 
(Copy enclosed) 
 
 

 

 



 

(b) To note that the next meetings of the above Association will be held 
as follows:  

 

 18 November 2016 in Carmarthenshire 

 3 March 2017 in Usk, Monmouthshire 
 
 

10.   UP-DATE REPORT BY GWE CHALLENGE ADVISER 
 

 

 To receive a verbal up-date report by the GwE Challenge Adviser on the 
following matters: 
 

(a)  Curriculum for Wales 
(b)  Support to the new GCSE 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



  SACRE 15.06.16 

 1 

 

S.A.C.R.E – STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS 

EDUCATION 

 

15/06/16 

 

 
Present:   

  
 
Gwynedd Council Members: Councillors Annwen Daniels, Jean Forsyth, Selwyn Griffiths      
    
Christians and Other Faiths:  Eirian Bradley-Roberts (The Catholic Church) 
 
 
Teachers:  Heledd Jones, Alwen Watkin   
 
Officers:  Mrs Mai Bere (Assistant Education Officer and SACRE Clerk) and Glynda O’Brien 
(Members’ Support and Scrutiny Officer). 
 
GwE:  Miss Bethan James (GwE Challenge Advisor)  
 
Apologies:     Cllrs Tom Ellis, Gweno Glyn, Mrs Elizabeth Roberts (Undeb Bedyddwyr Cymru), 
Dr. Gwyn Lewis (Presbyterian Church of Wales), Cathryn Davey, Miriam Amlyn (Teachers' 
Union).  
 
 
1.  PRAYER 
  

  The meeting was opened with a prayer from Councillor Selwyn Griffiths.   
 
2. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

 
Resolved: To re-elect Councillor Selwyn Griffiths as Chair of this Committee for 
the year 2016/17.  
 
 

3. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
 Resolved: In light of the fact that many members had sent their apologies for the 

meeting, it was felt that it would be better to defer the election of Vice-chair until the 
next meeting.    

  
4.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 
  No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 
 
 
5.  MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee held on 10 February 2016, 
as a true record. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



  SACRE 15.06.16 

 2 

 
 

6.    SCHOOLS’ SELF-EVALUATIONS 
 

(a) The GwE Challenge Advisor guided Members through the sheet submitted giving a 
summary of school findings and attention was drawn to the fact that four primary 
schools had been inspected by ESTYN during the 2015 Autumn term, along with 5 
primary schools and 1 secondary school during the Spring Term 2016. Attention was 
drawn to the fact that ESTYN's "Good" conclusion included more than just Religious 
Education.    

 
(b) Members were guided through the self-evaluations of the schools of Morfa Nefyn, 

Cymerau, Foelgron, Manod, Nefyn and Pont y Gof noting that it was hoped that the 
schools had reached their opinions by scrutinising books and considering religious 
education data.       

 
Attention was drawn to examples within the self-evaluations and it was noted that there was 
evidence of quantifying, lesson observations and the schools had deemed that the 
standards and provision was good. From the self-evaluations, the context of the type of 
work done at the schools was set.   
 
 
RESOLVED:   To accept and note the contents of the inspections and self-
evaluations and in accordance with procedure to request that the Assistant 
Education Officer sends a letter to the above schools congratulating them on their 
success and to note SACRE's appreciation of the efforts made by them in achieving 
the grades. 
 
 

7. THE WELSH GOVERNMENT'S PLANS FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION  
 
The GwE Challenge Advisor reminded members of the intention of Professor Graham 
Donaldson to amend the Wales Curriculum and explained that whilst the curriculum's 
subjects were the responsibility of Welsh Government that religious education was the 
responsibility of local SACREs and that they had adopted a national framework that had a 
similar status to that of other subjects.  
 
She elaborated further on the four objectives at the core of the new proposed curriculum, 
namely supporting children and young people to be:  
 

 ambitious, capable learners ready to learn throughout their lives  

 enterprising, creative contributors, ready to play a full part in life and work   

 ethical, informed citizens of Wales and the world 

 healthy, confident individuals, ready to lead fulfilling lives as valued members of 
society.  

 
The curriculum would be arranged into six learning and experience fields. It was noted 
that Professor Donaldson was eager for the curriculum to be implemented from the 
bottom upwards and that there would be a need to give teachers an opportunity to trial it. 
The GwE Challenge Advisor elaborated that she was a part of the Consultative Panel and 
that they had met to try and draw up guidance on "what is religious education" and 
hopefully another meeting would be held in the coming weeks so that information could be 
shared with the pioneering schools. In terms of pioneering schools in the Gwynedd 
SACRE area, it was noted that the leaders in the different fields had been identified 
through GwE for joint-planning but that very little guidance had been submitted to date.  

Page 6



  SACRE 15.06.16 

 3 

 
In terms of primary schools, it was noted that Dellatec (Siwan Tecwyn) offered a course 
on the requirements of Professor Donaldson's recommendations.   

 
In response to an enquiry regarding the pioneering schools, the GwE Challenge Advisor 
confirmed that she would share the list with SACRE Members.  

 
Resolved:  To accept and note the above.  

 
 

8. RELIGIOUS EDUCATION AND THE BACCALAUREATE  
 

The GwE Challenge Advisor shared background information with Members and noted that 
there was a specification for introducing the Welsh Baccalaureate in schools since 2015, 
and that a number of SACREs had complained and highlighted concerns that this was 
detrimental to Religious Education. The Wales Association of SACRE had decided to 
draw up a questionnaire to send to schools in order to gain a better understanding of what 
was happening in reality. Eight primary schools from Gwynedd had completed the 
questionnaire and in the whole it was noted that Gwynedd schools had noted that not 
much change had been seen.   Appreciation was shown and the schools were thanked for 
responding and it was noted that good teachers were protecting religious education.   

 
It was noted that Ysgol Friars had started to offer two lessons a week and would continue 
with this until Christmas.  

 
Resolved:  (a) To accept and note the above. 

 
(b) To ask the SACRE Clerk to send a letter to the schools to  

   express SACRE's gratitude and appreciation for the responses 
   to the questionnaire.   

 
 
 

9. UPDATE BY THE GwE CHALLENGE ADVISOR  
 
The GwE Challenge Advisor reported:   
 
(a) that concerns had been highlighted recently at the Wales Association of SACRE 
associated with INCERTS (implemented in primary schools to track pupils' attainment).   
Appropriate level descriptions within the programme were noted for subjects such as Welsh, 
English, Mathematics and Science.   However, in terms religious education, there had been 
some confusion as there were two descriptions, namely "Original Framework" and 
"Exemplar Framework".    It was noted that the correct description to use was the "Exemplar 
Framework".   This reflected on SACRE regarding the lack of guidance to schools on which 
level description should be used.  
 
It was suggested that a letter should be sent to all Gwynedd primary schools to inform them 
that they should check that the "Exemplar Framework" level descriptions were selected 
when recording Religious Education on INCERTS because this was the relevant level to 
Gwynedd and Anglesey's Agreed Syllabus.    
 
(b) GCSE - it was suggested that Head Teachers should ensure that Religious Education 
teachers gained access to any courses and to collaborate with Mavis Jones, Head of 
Religious Education Department, Ysgol Syr Thomas Jones, Amlwch, who was the region's 
coordinator and she would be available to assist Gwynedd and Anglesey.  
 

Page 7



  SACRE 15.06.16 

 4 

 
(c) For information, it was noted that CYNNAL had been awarded a five year contract to 

develop an e-magazine for geography and that it would be a good model to copy for 
religious education.   Two individuals from Gwynedd had been appointed as editors of 
the magazine namely Huw Dylan, Ysgol y Berwyn and Noel Dyer, former teacher at 
Ysgol Glan y Môr, Pwllheli.    The first issue of the magazine would be published on 
HWB+ around the end of the Autumn term.   

 
Resolved: (a) To accept and note the above. 
 
   (b) To request that the SACRE Clerk sends a letter on behalf of  
   SACRE:  
 
(i) to all primary schools in Gwynedd drawing their attention to the guidance to select 
the "Exemplar Framework" for Religious Education within the INCERTS.   
(ii) to express their appreciation of GwE's 'lead teachers' scheme to ensure that 
GCSE Religious Studies teachers received support and opportunities to collaborate 
when preparing the new GCSE specification.  
(iii) to send best wishes to Mefys Edwards Jones, head of the religious education 
department, Ysgol Syr Thomas Jones, Amlwch, in her role as lead teacher.   

 
     

10. WALES ASSOCIATION of SACREs 
 
(a) Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The draft minutes of the previous Association meeting, held on 8 March 2016 in 
Haverfordwest, were submitted. 
 
The GwE Challenge Advisor drew attention to the following matters:  
 

 That the WJEC course had been postponed  

 That the Advisory Panel had prepared guidelines on the rights of a child/parents to 
withdraw from collective worship.  

 
        (b) Nominations for the Wales Association of SACRE's Executive Committee were   
 submitted.  

 
 
Resolved:  (a) To accept and note the contents of the minutes. 
 
    (b) To note that the Association's next meeting would be held 
    on 23 June 2016 in Rhyl.     
 

(c) To request that the GwE Challenge Advisor votes on behalf 
    of Gwynedd SACRE for the three individuals named below:  
 
    Mary Parry   
    Huw Stephens 
    Mathew Maidment 

 
 

Page 8



  SACRE 15.06.16 

 5 

 
The meeting commenced at 2:00 pm and concluded at 3:30 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 

 

Page 9



 

 1 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

GWYNEDD 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 
 
 
 

September 2015 -  August 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Head of the Education Department 

Arwyn Thomas 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

 2 

CONTENT 
 
 
SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
1.1  Introduction by SACRE Chairman: Councillor E. Selwyn Griffiths 
         
 
SECTION 2: ADVICE TO ANGLESEY COUNCIL  
 
2.1 SACRE’s function in relation to Religious Education  
2.2 The Locally Agreed Syllabus 
2.3 How good are standards? 
2.4 The response of the Local Education Authority 
2.5 Religious Education and the Welsh Government 
2.6 Religious Education and ESTYN 
2.7 SACRE’s function in relation to Collective Worship  
 
SECTION 3: ANNEXES  
 
3.1 General information about the composition of SACRE 
3.2 Membership of Gwynedd SACRE 2015-16 
3.3 SACRE meetings held during the reporting period 
3.4 A list of organisations to which the SACRE report was sent 
3.5 Template provided by Gwynedd SACRE for schools as they self-evaluate standards in Religious 
Education. 
3.6 Guidance for analysing external examination  
3.7 Gwynedd SACRE action plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 3 

 
 

SECTION 1:    
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 
 

SACRE’s function in relation to Religious Education 
 
A clear outline of SACRE’s function is given in the Welsh Office Circular 10/94 
 
SACRE advises the LEA on matters relating to the provision of Religious Education and Collective 
Worship, and is responsible for the establishment of an ad hoc body, the Agreed Syllabus 
Conference, to produce or consider amendments to the Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education. 

 
 
1.1 Chairman’s summary 
 
 
Cllr E. Selwyn Griffiths 
Chair of Gwynedd SACRE, 2015/2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

 4 

SECTION 2:  ADVICE TO GWYNEDD EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

 
2.1 SACRE’s function in relation to Religious Education 
  
A clear outline of SACRE's function is given in the Welsh Office Circular 10/94. 
 
SACRE advises the LEA on matters relating to the provision of Religious Education and Collective 
Worship, and is responsible for the establishment of an ad hoc body, the Agreed Syllabus 
Conference, to produce or consider amendments to the Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education. 
 
2.2 The Locally Agreed Syllabus 
 
Gwynedd and Anglesey SACREs have adopted the ‘National Exemplar Framework for Religious 
Education for 5-19 year old learners’  as the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Gwynedd and Anglesey 
(2008).  Previous to March 2013, this document and exemplar materials were disseminated by 
CYNNAL’s humanities adviser during training courses and school visits.  This curriculum support 
was discontinued in March 2013. 
 
A SACRE’s main function is ‘...to advise the authority upon such matters connected with religious 
worship in county schools and the religious education to be given in accordance with an agreed 
syllabus as the authority may refer to the council or as the council may see fit.’  
Education Reform Act 1988 s.11 (1) (a) 
 
 
2.3 How good are standards? 
 
Gwynedd  SACRE monitors religious education and collective worship by: 

 receiving a summary of a school’s self-evaluation report in response to the key questions of 
ESTYN’s Inspection Framework;  

 analysing the Local Authority’s teacher assessments and secondary examination results;  

 reviewing ESTYN inspection reports for references to ‘religious education’ or ‘collective 
worship’; 

 inviting teachers and head teachers to share their good practices with members in the 
termly meetings. 

 
 

2.3.1 Schools’ self-evaluation reports 
      
SACRE members resolved at their meeting on 9 February 2011, to continue to receive copies of 
schools’ self-evaluation of religious education and collective worship and asked head teachers to 
use a revised template.  Gwynedd SACRE, Gwynedd head teachers and members of the National 
Advisory Panel for Religious Education (NAPfRE) have approved the new template which was 
redrafted in response to the new ESTYN Inspection Framework (Appendix 3.5).  The SACRE clerk, 
who is an assistant quality improvement education officer for Gwynedd  Council is responsible for 
distributing and collating the self-evaluation reports.  Primary and secondary schools are asked to 
submit a summary of their self-evaluation during the year when the school is inspected by ESTYN. 
 

Page 12



 

 5 

13 self evaluation reports were submitted to Gwynedd SACRE during 2015-16, representing 12% 
of the schools in Gwynedd.   
 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

 Primary Secondary Primary Secondary Primary Secondary Primary Secondary Primary Secondary 

Number of 
reports 

9 0 16 1 9 3 14 0 11 2 

 
 
Before 2013, CYNNAL developed guidance and an online template for primary and secondary 
schools to support teachers and head teachers in their self-evaluation.  The supplementary 
materials included success criteria, lesson observation, book review guidance, data analysis, 
making judgements on standards and cross curricular skills as well as exemplar questions which 
could be used when interviewing pupils.   
Cyflwynwyd 13 adroddiad hunan arfarnu i sylw CYSAG Gwynedd yn ystod y flwyddyn. Derbyniwyd  
adroddiadau gan 11 ysgolion cynradd, yn ystod y flwyddyn:   
 
Thirteen self-evaluation reports were submitted to Gwynedd SACRE during the year.  Reports 
were received from the following primary schools:  Morfa Nefyn, Beddgelert, Hirael, 
Llanaelhaearn, Llanelltyd, Y Traeth, Cymerau, Foelgron, Manod, Nefyn a Pont y Gof.  Two 
secondary schools also submitted their self evaluation reports: Ysgol Dyffryn Nantlle and Ysgol y 
Gader.  
 
The self-evaluation report is a record of the school’s response to key questions 1 and 2 of the 
inspection framework.  Schools submit their concise judgement on the main strengths of learners’ 
achievements in religious education and note the aspects which will be addressed in the following 
two years in order to raise standards.  They also present a concise judgement on the quality of the 
provision of religious education and collective worship.  Following the self-evaluation process, 
schools awarded the following grades: 
 

 How good are outcomes in 
Religious Education? 

How good is provision in Religious 
Education? 

How good is the provision for 
collective worship? 

 Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory 

Primary   11    11    3  8   

Special     2           

Secondary        1 1    2  

Total  13    13 1  3 8 2  

  
 

The self-evaluation reports reflect the requirements of Gwynedd and Anglesey SACREs by 
submitting evaluative comments based on specific evidence.  In the best examples, the 
commentary was measurable and quantitative and made references to the Locally Agreed 
Syllabus.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

 6 

How good are the outcomes in Religious Education? 
Schools identified good features such as: 
  

 Nearly all pupils make consistently good progress in RE lessons with a good number making 
excellent progress.  (Morfa Nefyn) 

 Pupils’ awareness of the practices of different religions.  (Y Traeth) 

 nearly all pupils can describe and discuss the main features of religious rituals, festivals and 
celebrations.  (Beddgelert) 

 pupils confidently use their investigation and enquiry skills to find out specific information.  
(Hirael) 

 that pupils can effectively discuss concepts such as justice and fairness.  (Llanaelhaearn a 
Cymerau) 

 pupils’ good knowledge of Bible stories and the messages conveyed by Jesus Christ.  (Foel 
Gron) 

 that nearly all Foundation Phase pupils and the majority of KS2 pupils can use a range of 
appropriate religious vocabulary.  (Llanelltyd) 

 that pupils know many religious stories and can describe how people practise their faith.  
(Cymerau) 

 most of the Foundation Phase learners can recall and respond to basic religious beliefs, 
teachings and practices well and can suggest in simple terms why certain aspects of 
religion are important for some  people, e.g. when exploring the theme of  ‘Celebrations’. 
(Manod) 

 most pupils, by the end of KS2, can discuss questions that arise from personal experiences, 
the world about them and aspects of religion, offering their own opinions, e.g. when 
exploring the question, ‘What is peace?’ 

 nearly all pupils can specifically refer to ways in which religion affects the lives of believers.  
An example of this is the way in which various religions express thanks, e.g. thanksgiving 
for the Christians, Eid-ul-fitr in Islam and Sukkot for the Jews.  Most of the learners also 
start to note the similarities and differences between religions.  (Nefyn) 

 a minority of pupils can make links between religious beliefs, doctrines and practices and 
how aspects of religion impact the lives of believers and note the similarities and 
differences within religions. (Pont y Gof) 

 that nearly all KS3 pupils have made the expected progress during KS3 and that 60% of 
GCSE candidates had achieved A*/A.  Book monitoring reports show that the pupils have a 
sound understanding of the subject.  

 The increase in the number of KS3 pupils who attain the higher levels in religious Education 
and the consistently good GCSE results over a 10 year period.  (Y Gader) 
 

The schools identified matters which require further attention during the next two years and 
noted that teachers intended to:  

 develop Foundation Phase pupils’ ability to ask questions and express an opinion. 
(Beddgelert) 

 develop extended writing within religious Education.   (Hirael a Manod) 

 ensure that the standard of extended writing in religious Education is consistently good 
throughout the school.  (Y Traeth) 

Page 14



 

 7 

 develop information about various religions focussing on learning about messages 
conveyed by religions on how to live in a devout manner. (Llanaelhaearn a Cymerau) 

 increase the number of pupils who achieving L5 in religious Education by the end of KS2.  
(Llanelltyd a Nefyn) 

 continues to encourage pupils to use religious vocabulary appropriately.  (Pont y Gof) 

 improve pupils’ verbal contribution in lessons and KS3 pupils’ extended answers.  (Dyffryn 
Nantlle) 

 ensure that the L7 target pupils achieve their potential.  (Y Gader) 
 

How good is the provision in Religious Education? 
 
Schools reported that the provision was good because:   

 the special areas created in the classrooms to accompany the class themes, e.g.. the Seder 
Table (Judaism) encouraged children to role play and recreate the Jewish celebration. 
(Morfa Nefyn) 

 the learning plans ensured progression and development of pupils’ religious Education 
skills.  (Beddgelert) 

 the school makes good use of the pupils’ various ethnic backgrounds in order to learn 
about other faiths. (Hirael) 

 the focus given to  Cwricwlwm Cymreig, e.g. the contributions made by Bishop William 
Morgan and Mari Jones to Christianity in Wales.  (Hirael) 

 the teachers prepare engaging lessons, e.g. visits to local places of worship, using religious 
artefacts. (Llanaelhaearn) 

 of the thorough knowledge of the specialist teacher who teaches all KS2 pupils.  (Y Traeth) 

 of the various visits that enrich pupils’ experiences, e.g. the annual visit to Coleg y Bala in 
order to learn about Easter. (Cymerau a Foelgron) 

 the focus on big questions/fundamental questions has ensured very definite development 
in the learners’ investigative skills.   (Manod and Pont y Gof) 

 bod addysg grefyddol yn datblygu medrau meddwl disgyblion y Cyfnod Sylfaen a CA2.  
(Nefyn) 

 bod arsylwadau gwersi a gwaith dysgwyr yn dangos safonau uchel mewn addysg grefyddol 
ar draws bob oedran.  (Nefyn) 

 lesson observations show that the quality of teaching in religious education lessons is 
good. (Dyffryn Nantlle). 

 the pupil progress tracking system that ensures that every pupil is aware of his/her target 
grade in religious education.  (Y Gader). 
 

The schools identified matters which require further attention during the next two years and 
noted that teachers intended to:  

 visit religious buildings such as the Mosque in Bangor.  (Morfa Nefyn)  

 continue to identify suitable success criteria and provide opportunities to reflect on the 
learning.  (Beddgelert and Pont y Gof) 

 ensure that the requirements of the Literacy and Numeracy Frameworks are purposefully 
integrated into the lesson/work plans.  (Hirael and Cymerau) 

 ensure adequate resources and artefacts to teach the children about other beliefs and 
practices.  (Llanaelhaearn, Cymerau, Nefyn and Pont y Gof) 

Page 15



 

 8 

 ensure the regular use of ICT throughout the school to develop pupils’ understanding and 
skills when dealing with religious topics. (Llanelltyd) 

 develop all teachers’ knowledge, understanding and competence in religious Education.  (Y 
Traeth) 

 collaborate  with other church school in order to discuss good practice and share 
specialisations. (Foelgron) 

 develop numeracy in religious Education.  (Manod) 

 continue to plan various and differentiated activities across all age groups to ensure that 
the work provides and appropriate challenge for all pupils.  (Nefyn) 

 continue to provide religious education activities in the outside area.   (Pont y Gof) 

 continue to develop challenging and extended tasks for the more able pupils in every class. 
(Pont y Gof) 

 develop more oracy, numeracy and IT tasks in religious Education and strengthen the 
statutory provision at KS4. (Dyffryn Nantlle) 

 plan more extended tasks and investigation tasks for KS4 pupils. (Y Gader) 
 
 
 

How good is the collective worship provision? 
 
Nearly all schools fulfil the statutory requirements.   
 
The schools identified good practices such as: 

 the special spiritual ethos of the morning collective worship sessions; the pupils effectively 
contribute through sharing feelings and improvisatory prayer.  The have opportunities to 
learn about different religions in order to show respect and empathy towards others. 
(Morfa Nefyn) 

 that nearly all pupils participate in the thematic assemblies, e.g. Fair Trade, caring for 
animals.  Their recitation and reading skills are good as are their listening skills as they 
show respect o other people.  They respond confidently to adults. (Beddgelert) 

 the good focus on morality, religious stories, the year’s celebrations and current affairs. y 
(Hirael) 

 the regular visits by the local minister and the ‘Open the Book’ group from the local church, 
since these visits enrich the pupils’ spiritual development.  (Llanelltyd) 

 pupils’ good understanding, within a church school, of the nature of worship, the Christian 
faith, Christian traditions and practices. (Foelgron) 

 a collective worship monitoring report by the governors/parents note that the quality of 
collective worship is very good.  (Manod) 

 that teachers prepare lively and effective collective worship sessions in their classrooms. 
(Nefyn) 

 collective worship sessions make a significant contribution to the children’s spiritual, 
moral, social and cultural development.  (Pont y Gof) 

 the positive attitude shown by the majority of pupils regarding participation in collective 
worship.  (Y Gader) 
 

The schools identified matters which require further attention during the next two years and 
noted that teachers intended to: 

Page 16



 

 9 

 provide opportunities for pupils to reflect at the end of a collective worship session.  
(Hirael) 

 ensure that the collective worship sessions held in classrooms are better structured and 
provide more opportunities for religious singing in the whole school collective worship 
sessions. (Llanaelhaearn and Cymerau) 

 ensure that new members of staff comply with the statutory requirement of providing a 
collective worship session in the classroom when no whole school service is held.  (Y 
Traeth) 

 ensure that Y5/6 pupils prepare a short evaluation of the collective worship sessions, 
focussing on the impact of the collective worship.  (Foel Gron) 

 invest in an interactive white board in the hall in order to use video clips to further 
promote the quality of collective worship sessions.  (Manod) 

 ensure that responsibilities are shared and that the entire all members of staff understand 
their collective worship responsibilities. (Pont y Gof) 

 improve the quality of whole school collective worship sessions at KS3 and KS4.    (Dyffryn 
Nantlle) 

 improve the provision of daily class and/or whole school collective worship sessions.  The 
school will monitor the provision to ensure that every class receives a regular opportunity 
to worship.  (Y Gader). 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

2.3.2 Teacher assessment and external examination results in the secondary sector  
 
Teacher assessments:  Religious Education KS3  
Departments judge pupils’ attainment on the basis of the year’s work, specific assessment tasks 
and tests and use the findings of the national moderation programme (2013-12) and Welsh 
Government guidance to verify their judgements:  

 Religious Education: Guidance for KS2 and KS3 (2011) 

 Exemplar Pupils Profiles at KS2 an KS3 in Religious Education:  Supplementary Guidance 
(2011) 

 

 

 

SACREs Recommendations to Gwynedd Council 

 Develop co-ordinators’ and subject leaders’ knowledge and understanding of RE and 
their management skills; 

 Ensure that schools can access guidance and examples of good practice that will 
improve pupils’ outcomes in religious education and the quality of religious Education.   

 
 
 

Page 17



 

 10 

The Welsh Government does not collect KS3 Religious Education data, so it is inappropriate to 
compare the performance of Gwynedd schools with schools across Wales.  However, CYNNAL 
does collect KS3 data on behalf of Anglesey (A), Gwynedd (G)*.   

 
Year Schools Pupils %L5+ %L6+ %L7+ 

  M+G+C* Gwynedd M+G+C Gwynedd M+G+C Gwynedd M+G+C Gwynedd M+G+C 

2015 5(5)+13(14)+0(0) 1,142 1,790 94.0  60.9  24.8  

2014 5(5)+11(14)+0(0) 1,048 1,659 94.0 91.7 61.6 55.3 21.0 19.6 

2013 5(5)+5(14)+1(7) 462 1,242 93.5 88.7 68.4 52.3 24.9 18.2 

2012° 5(5)+13(14)+4(7) 1,265 2,577 87.0 82.7 51.2 43.2 16.4 12.5 

2011 3(5)+11(14)+2(7) 1,150 1,773 81.8   40.7   12.5   

* By the end of October 2015, every 13 out of 14 secondary schools in Gwynedd had submitted KS3 performance data, 
5 out of 5 secondary schools in Anglesey and 0 out of 0 schools in Conwy.  Special schools did not submit teacher 
assessments for religious education.    

° The moderation of religious education portfolios was completed in Summer 2012.  This suggests therefore that there 

is a consistency in schools’ understanding of the attainment levels.   
 
 

 13 secondary schools in Gwynedd submittedd KS3 teacher assessment data this year: 
Dyffryn Ogwen, Dyffryn Nantlle,Brynrefail, Eifionydd, Y Gader, Uwchradd Tywyn, Y Berwyn, 
Ardudwy, Y Moelwyn, Friars, Tryfan, Syr Hugh Owen, Glan y Môr.  

 CYNNAL did not receive KS3 performance data from Botwnnog.   

 1,142 KS3 pupils were assessed in Summer 2015;  

 94% of Gwynedd’s KS3 pupils attained Level 5+ in Religious Education, consistent with the 
results of 2014.  The percentage of pupils who were awarded L5+ varied from 87.9% to 
98%;   

 60.9% of Gwynedd’s KS3 pupils attained Level 6+ in Religious Education, 0.7% fewer than 
2013.  The percentage of pupils who were awarded L6+ varied from 31.5% to 77.2%;   

 24.8% of Gwynedd’s KS3 pupils attained Level 7+ in Religious Education, 3.8% more than in 
2014.  Level 7+ was awarded by all schools, and the percentage of pupils who were 
awarded L7+ varied from 13% to 36.7%;   

 Level 3 or lower was awarded to pupils in 2 schools.   

 25 pupils (2.2%)  in Gwynedd were awarded Level 8 in religious education.    
 
GCSE Results:  Religious Studies (full course)  
 
The data represents the candidates who were 15 years old or older in January 2011.    
 

 

No. of schools 
 

No. of candidates % Excellence % L2 % L1 
Average subject 

score 

 B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ 

2015 12 117 262 371 20.5 39.7 33.8 65.0 83.6 77.8 99.1 100.0 99.7 40 46 44 

2014 12 111 220 331 27.9 40.0 46.0 71.2 80.9 77.6 100.0 100.0 100.0 42 46 45 

2013 12 126 262 388 38.9 46.6 44.1 79.4 84.7 83.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 45 47 46 

2012 10 113 190 303 37.2 44.7 41.9 76.1 83.2 80.5 100.0 100.0 100.0 44 46 45 

2011 12 128 266 394 24.2 41.7 36.0 62.5 75.9 71.6 99.2 96.2 97.2 40 43 42 

Page 18



 

 11 

2010  42 97 139 14.3 36.1 29.5 61.9 90.7 82.0 92.9 99.0 97.1 36 42 40 

 
The average score achieved by the pupils in all subjects is not available to Gwynedd SACRE .  
Consequently it is inappropriate to compare performances of schools.  However, RE departments 
will be able to access data to show how their candidates performed in other subjects and are 
advised to use this information in their self-evaluation.   
 
Good results 

 371 candidates from 12 schools in Gwynedd, 40 more candidates than in 2014.  The 
average subject score is 44, one point less than the previous year.  There are o candidates 
from Ysgol Uwchradd Tywyn and candidates from Ysgol Ardudwy travel to Ysgol Eifionydd 
to follow a GCSE Religious Studies course.  

 The number of candidates from each school range from 10 pupils to 143 pupils. 

 33.8% of candidates achieved A*/A grades (excellence) which is 2.2% fewer than in 2014. 
77.8% of candidates achieved a Level 2 (A*-C) qualification, 0.2% more than last year.   

 99.7% of candidates were awarded a Level 1 qualification (A*-G).  

 More girls than boys choose Religious Studies as a GCSE option.  (B 117 : G 262). 

 The results achieved by the girls are better than those achieved by the boys.  The average 
score achieved by the girls is 46 in comparison with the average score of 40 achieved by 
the boys.  8+ represents a GCSE grade.  This year’s L2 results suggest that the difference 
between the percentage of boys and girls who achieve grades A* to C (18.6%) has 
increased for the third successive year.  The gap between the percentage of boys and girls 
attaining A*/A is 19.2% which is greater than the difference observed in 2014 (12.1%), 
2013 (7.7%) and 2012 (7.5%) 

 
GCSE Results: Religious Studies (short course) 
This data represents the pupils who were 15 years old or older on January 2010.  These pupils 
have chosen to claim their points on the completion of their GCSE short course instead of 
continuing their studies for a second year.  Very few schools offer the GCSE Religious Studies short 
course as an accreditation for the statutory KS4 Religious Education course..  

 
 

 

 

No. of schools No. of candidates % Excellence % L2 % L1 Average subject score 

 B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ B G Σ 

2015 4 56 51 107 3.6 13.7 8.4       15 17 16 

2014 7 122 168 288 25.4 40.4 34.0       23 26 25 

2013 9 145 253 398 0.0 0.0 0.0 71.0 79.1 76.1 97.2 97.6 97.5 21 23 22 

2012 3 17 38 55 0.0 0.0 0.0 58.8 84.2 76.4 100.0 100.0 100.0 18 22 20 

2011 6 121 134 255 0.0 0.0 0.0 46.3 67.2 57.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 18 21 19 

2010  223 323 546 0.9 3.7 2.6 62.8 82.4 74.4 100.0 100.0 100.0 22 25 23 

Page 19



 

 12 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
2.3.3  ESTYN Inspection Reports 
 
15 primary schools and 1 secondary school in Gwynedd were inspected by ESTYN during 2014-15 
and SACRE members scrutinised the relevant excerpts form the inspection reports:  
 
School Date Care, support 

and guidance  
(2.3) 
Is there a reference 
to spiritual, moral, 
social and cultural 
development?  

Care, support and 
guidance  (2.3) 
Is there a reference to 
collective worship? 

Learning 
experiences (2.1) 
Is there a reference to 
Religious Education? 

Working with 
partnership  (3.3) 
Is there a reference 
to local religious 
communities? 

Y Traeth 03.15     

Llanaelhaearn 04.15   1   

Llanrug 06.16     

Llanelltyd 06.15     

Hirael 06.15     

Beddgelert 06/15     

B Morfa Nefyn 09/15  2   

Foel Gron3 10/15     

Garndolbenmaen 11/15  2   

Pont y Gof 12/15  2   

Cymerau 01/16  2   

Nefyn 01/16  2   

Syr Hugh Owen 02/16     

Manod 02/16  2   

Llanllechid 03/16  2   

Craig y Deryn 03/16     
1. The report refers to ‘whole-school assemblies’  
2. The report refers to ‘regular Services of collective worship’.  
3. Ysgol sydd dan Reolaeth Wirfoddol yr Eglwys yng Nghymru.    

 

 
 
 
 

What are SACRE’s recommendations to Gwynedd Council? 

 Encourage secondary departments to respond to any messages identified as a result 
of analysing schools’ internal and external performance data; 

 Ensure that religious education teachers are able to access the subject guidance of the 
WJEC examination board and to facilitate opportunities for them to work together, 
under the guidance of the lead practitioners, in response to the new specifications for 
the new GCSE and A level examinations. 

 Facilitate professional learning communities for religious education teachers in order 
to share good practice and work together to observe lessons, scrutinise books or to 
establish meaningful partnerships with their colleagues in the primary sector. 

 

Page 20



 

 13 

The reports note that: 
 

 Most school promote the learners’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development well.   

 Schools have suitable work plans that fulfil the requirements of the locally agreed syllabus 
for religious Education effectively; 

 The ability of the pupils of Ysgol Babanod Morfa Nefyn to reflect during the periods of 
collective worship to “an especially good feature”. 

 Six schools had established useful partnerships with local religious communities.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
2.4  Response of Local Authority 
 
Mrs Mai Bere, assistant education improvement officer for Gwynedd Council ensures that any 
guidance or recommenations made by Gwynedd SACRE is communicated directly to the primary 
and secondary head teachers.  Gwynedd Council has comissioned GwE (School Effectiveness and 
Improvement Service) to support Gwynedd SACRE meetings and to respresent SACRE in regional 
and national meetings. 
 
Gwynedd SACRE adopted an action plan this year outlining four priories for 2015-17 (appendix 
3.7).  The priorities were identified by the 2014-15 annual SACRE report and during the discussions 
held during the year.  However, in a climate of financial cuts, there is no local curriculum advisory 
service that can offer support or training for teachers who teach religious education.  It is 
increasingly difficult for SACREs to advise and support schools.   
 
Priority 1: To develop good leadership in Religious Education and collective worship 
Priority 2: ‘Successful Futures’ (Donaldson Recommendations) and Religious Education 
Priority 3: To support secondary teachers as they prepare for the new GCSE syllabus. 
Priority 4:  To facilitate good quality collective worship. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SACRE’s recommendations to Gwynedd Council 
 

SACREs Recommendations to Gwynedd Council 

 Ensure that the challenge adviser offers termly workshops in order to offer guidance to 
subject co-ordinators as they self evaluate religious education and collective worship.   

 Respond to the priorities of the 2015-17 action plan. 

Page 21



 

 14 

2.5   Religious Education and the Welsh Government 
 
The Welsh Government has published and distributed guidance documents to support RE 
teachers:   

 http://wales.gov.uk > search for Religious Education 

 The National Exemplar Framework for Religious Education in Wales (2008)  

 Religious Education: Guidance for KS2 and KS3 (2011) 

 Exemplar Pupils Profiles at KS2 an KS3 in Religious Education:  Supplementary Guidance (2011) 

 Religious Education:  Guidance for 14-19 year old learners (2009)  

 People, Questions and Beliefs:  Religious Education in the Foundation Phase (2013)  

 Religious Education: Chief Moderator’s Report 2012 (http://cbac.co.uk ) 
 
 
During 2014-15, Professor Graham Donaldson was commissioned to undertake an independent review of 
the curriculum and assessment arrangements in Wales.  Gwynedd SACRE has contributed to the 
consultation process of the ‘Great Debate’ and has discussed the recommendations of the report, 
‘Successful Futures’ published in February 2015.  The Wales Association of SACRES is represented at the 
meetings led by the Welsh Government for the Strategic Stakeholders Group and the National Advisory 
Panel for Religious Education (NAPfRE) has met with representatives form the Welsh Government 
Curriculum department during the year as they support the pioneer schools in the development of a new 
curriculum for Wales.  Miss Bethan James, GwE Challenge Adviser who supports Gwynedd and Anglesey 
SACREs is currently working with NAPfRE colleagues to develop guidance materials for teachers. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.6   Religious Education and ESTYN 
 
Gwynedd SACRE recommends the following resources to RE teachers and head teachers:   

 www.estyn.org.uk; 

 Religious Education in Secondary Schools (ESTYN, June 2013), and, 

 Supplementary Guidance: collective worship in non-denominational schools (2011). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SACRE’s recommendations to Gwynedd Council 

 Ensure that RE teachers are aware of the guidance documents available and act on the 
guidance.   

 Encourage Gwynedd religious education teachers and SACRE members to contribute 
fully to any review of the curriculum and assessment arrangements. 

SACRE’s recommendations to  Gwynedd Council  

 Ensure that schools and secondary RE teachers are aware of the findings of the ESTYN 
report and act on the recommendations.   

Page 22

http://wales.gov.uk/
http://cbac.co.uk/
http://www.estyn.org.uk/


 

 15 

2.7  SACRE’s function in relation to collective worship  
 
Welsh Office Circular 10/94 notes that the LEA should work with SACRE to keep an eye on the daily 
collective worship provision, and should consider with it any steps which may be taken to improve 
such provision. 
 

The collective worship must be “of a broadly Christian character”. The “determination” procedure 
permits the suspension of these requirements in relation to some or all of the pupils in a school 
where they are deemed inappropriate. . 
 

 SACRE members and Gwynedd schools have received collective worship guidance 
documents:  

 ‘Supplementary guidance for inspecting collective worship in non-denominational 
schools’ (ESTYN, June 2013); 

 Guidance on Collective Worship (WASACRE, June 2012). 
 

 Gwynedd SACRE monitors the provision and standard of collective worship in schools by 
reviewing schools’ self-evaluation reports;  
 

 Gwynedd SACRE recommends that schools use a range of resources in order to provide 
meaningful collective worship sessions for their pupils:  
 CYNNAL’s Moodle site: guidance, exemplar timetables, a list of useful books and 

websites, exemplar materials provided by local primary schools;  
 
Since the end of the provision of advisory support for religious education in March 2013 Gwynedd 
and Anglesey SACRE members have considered alternative methods of fulfilling their duties to 
monitor standards and advise the education authority.  Ten members responded to a 
questionnaire circulated to Gwynedd SACRE members (13.06.13).  An analysis of the responses 
(23.10.13) shows that: 

 many Gwynedd SACRE members feel confident in their understanding of the statutory 
requirements for collective worship in schools: 

 about half the members are prepared to attend collective worship sessions in a sample of 
schools every term. 

 
Determinations 
 
There was no request from any school for a determination in relation to collective worship 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SACRE’s Recommendations to Gwynedd Council 

 Ensure that schools conform to the statutory requirement for collective worship and 
provide quality collective worship sessions;   

 Encourage schools to invite members of Gwynedd SACRE to attend collective worship 
sessions in the county’s schools; 

 Ensure that schools receive copies of ‘Supplementary guidance:  collective worship at 
non denominational schools’ (ESTYN) and ‘Collective Worship Guidance’ (WASACRE); 

 
 

Page 23



 

 16 

SECTION 3:  ANNEXES 

 
3.1 Administrative matters in relation to SACRE 
 
 
SACRE was established by Gwynedd Education Committee in 1996 to include: 
 
Christians and Other Faiths, namely, 

 The Methodist Church 

 The Union of Welsh Baptists 

 The Presbyterian Church of Wales 

 The Church in Wales 

 Union of Welsh Independents 

 The Catholic Church 
 
Teachers, namely; 

 The Association of School and College Leaders (ASCL) 

 National Union of Teachers in Wales (UCAC) 

 National Association of  Schoolmasters and Union of Women Teachers (NASUWT) 

 National Union of Teachers (NUT) 

 Association of Teachers and Lecturers (ATL) 

 National Association of Head Teachers (NAHT) 
 
 Elected members 
 
. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 17 

3.2 SACRE membership of Gwynedd 2015-16 
 
Christians and Other Religions  
The Methodist Church awaiting nomination 
Union of Welsh Baptists Mrs Elizabeth Robert 
Presbyterian Church of Wales Dr. W Gwyn Lewis 
Church in Wales Rev. Robert Townsend 
Union of Welsh Independents Mr. Cynrig Hughes 
The Catholic Church Mrs Eirian Bradley Roberts 
  
Teachers’ Unions’ representatives  
Association of School and College Leaders (ASCL) Mrs Alwen Watkin 
Welsh National Union of Teachers (UCAC)             Mr Noel Dyer 
National Association of Schoolmasters and Union 
of Women Teachers (NASUWT)                            

Mrs Miriam Amlyn  

National Union of Teachers (NUT ) 
Association of Teachers and Lecturers 

Mr Euron Hughes 
awaiting nomination 

National Association of Head teachers (NAHT)  Ms Elisabeth Williams 
 
 
Local members  
Councillor  Annwen Daniels 
Councillor  Selwyn Griffiths (Cadeirydd) 
Councillor  Gwenno Glyn 
empty seat 

Plaid Cymru 
Plaid Cymru 
Plaid Cymru 

Councillor  Tom Ellis  
Councillor  Jean Forsyth 

Annibynnol 
Annibynnol 

Councillor  I Dilwyn Lloyd 
 

Llais Gwynedd 
Llais Gwynedd/Plaid Cymru 

  
 
Co-opted members (non voting)  
Mr Rheinallt Thomas  
Mr Gwyn Rhydderch  
Parch Aled Davies  

  
Officers  
Mr Arwyn Thomas Pennaeth Adran Addysg Gwynedd 
Mrs Mai Bere Swyddog Addysg a chlerc CYSAG Gwynedd 
Miss Bethan James Arweinydd System GwE 
Mrs Glynda O’Brien Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau a Chraffu 

 

 
Mrs Alwen Watkin (Ysgol Eifionydd) 
Mrs Catherine Davey (Ysgol Llanystumdwy) 
Mrs Miriam Amlyn (Ysgol Eifionydd) 
 
Ms Heledd Owen (Ysgol Friars) 
awaiting nomination 
awaiting nomination 
 
 
 
Plaid Cymru 
Plaid Cymru 
Plaid Cymru 
Plaid Cymru 
Independent 
Independent 
Llais Gwynedd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Gwynedd’s Education Department 
Education Officer and Gwynedd SACRE clerk 
GwE challenge adviser 
Members’ support and scrutiny officer 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

 18 

 
3.3  SACRE meetings 2015-16 
 
Dates of meetings may be obtained by contacting the SACRE Clerk.  During 2015-16, Gwynedd 
SACRE met on three occasions:  
 

     20 November 2015 
     10 February 2016 
     15 June 2016 

    
The following matters were discussed and further details are provided in the main body of the 
report:  

 
a) Meeting held on 20 November 2015  

 Gwynedd  SACRE’s Annual Report (draft) 2014/2015 

 Schools’ self evaluation reports:  Morfa Nefyn, Beddgelert, Hirael, 
Llanaelhaearn, Llanelltyd, Y Traeth, Dyffryn Nantlle, Y Gader. 

 Teacher assessment and external examinations results for Gwynedd secondary  
schools. 

 Welsh Government’s Plans for Religious Education 

 Gwynedd  SACRE action plan 2014-15 

 Wales Association of SACREs: submit a report for the meeting held on the 25 
June 2015 in Mold, Flintshire.   

 
b) Meeting held on 10 February 2016 

 Gwynedd SACRE’s Draft Annual Report 2014-15 

 Schools’ self evaluation reports:  Morfa Nefyn, Beddgelert, Hirael, 
Llanaelhaearn, Llanelltyd, Y Traeth, Dyffryn Nantlle, Y Gader. 

 Welsh Government’s Plans for Religious Education 

 Gwynedd SACRE action plan 2015-16 

 Wales Association of SACREs: submit papers for the meeting held on the 25 
Juned 2015 in Mold, Flintshire and on the 25 November 2015 at Ebbw Vale.  
 

c) Meeting held on 15 June 2015 

 School’s self –evaluation reports:  Morfa Nefyn, Cymerau, Foelgron, Manod, 
Nefyn, Pont y Gof. 

 Welsh Government’s plans for Religious Education 

 Religious Education and the Baccalaureate 

 Update by the GwE Challenge Adviser 

 Wales Association of SACREs: submit papers for the meeting to be held on the 8 
March in Haverfordwest and to consider nominations for the Executive 
Committee of WASACRE.   

 
 
3.3.1 Gwynedd SACRE has affiliated with the Wales Association of SACREs and its members 

regularly attend meetings held by WASACRE.  

Page 26



 

 19 

 
The following representatives attended WASACRE meetings during the year:  

 

 XXXXXX 
  

The following representative attended WASACRE meetings as an observer during the year: 
 

 Miss Bethan James, GwE challenge adviser 

 Mr Rheinallt Thomas 
 
3.3.2 The following provide SACRE with professional support: 
 

Mr Arwyn Thomas, Head of Gwynedd Education Department 
/Mrs Mair Bere: education officers and SACRE clerks 
Miss Bethan James, challenge adviser (GwE) 
Mrs Glynda O’Brien, Members’ support and scrutiny officer and administers SACRE on 
behalf of Gwynedd Council. 
 
Enquiries should be sent to SACRE Clerk, Education Department, Gwynedd Council, 
Caernarfon, Gwynedd  LL55 1SH 

 
3.3.3   The SACRE report was sent to the following organisations:  
 
            Electronic copies of the annual report were distributed to the following:  
 

 Department for Education and Skills, Welsh Government 

 Head of Gwynedd’s education department 

 Council Leader 

 Wales Association of SACREs 

 Gwynedd Schools 
 
 A printed copy was distributed to:  

 Members of Gwynedd SACRE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 20 

3.5 Template used by Gwynedd  SACRE for a school’s self-evaluation of standards in religious 
education  
 
Rationale 
 

Religious Education in locally controlled by a Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
(SACRE).  It is made up of three committees:  representatives of the principal religous traditions of 
the area, teacher representatives and local authority representatives.  SACRE’s main function is, “ 
to advise the authority  upon such matters connected with religious worship in county schools and 
the religious education to be given in accordance with an agreed syllabus as the authority may 
refer to the council or as the council may see fit.” (Education Reform Act 1988 s.11(1)(a)  
 
Gwynedd  SACRE believes that this advice should be based on current information and hopes that 
the following guidelines will enable headteachers to support SACRE in its duties. 
 
In the past Gwynedd  SACRE has monitored religious education and collective worship by: 

 reviewing ESTYN inspection reports; 

 analysing the assessment and examination results within the secondary schools of the 
Local Authority; 

 receiving regular reports from the representatives of the local school advisory service; 

 inviting teachers and headteachers to share examples of good practice with SACRE 
members. 

 
The new ESTYN Inspection Framework will no longer make specific references to Religious 
Education and collective worship.  Gwynedd SACRE would therefore like to take advantage of the 
procedures and practices that are currently used by headteacher and teachers as they prepare for 
the new Inspection Framework   It was resolved at the Gwynedd SACRE meeting on 9 February 
2011 that it would fulfil its statutory responsibilities by inviting schools to share their self 
evaluation of Religious Education, collective worship and pupils’ spiritual and moral development 
with SACRE members. 
 
Primary and secondary schools are kindly asked to submit a summary of the school’s self 
evaluation to the clerk of Gwynedd SACRE during the year when they are inspected by ESTYN.   
 
Contact details:   
Name (SACRE Clerk):  Mrs Mai Bere 
Address:  Education Department, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, Gwynedd.  LL55 1SH 
 

 

 
Since 2008 the SACREs of Wales have adopted or adapted the National Exemplar Framework for 
Religious Education (DCELLS 2008) as their locally agreed syllabus.   Members of the National 
Advisory Panel for RE have welcomed this consistency across Wales since it has allowed them to 
work together to prepare generic guidelines for schools and SACREs.  Many SACREs in Wales have 
adopted a monitoring procedure/process similar to the one noted in this document. 

 
 
 

Page 28



 

 21 

Name of School:  

Religious Education 

Key Question 1: How good are outcomes in Religious Education? 

 Self-evaluation is based on lesson observations, evaluation of pupils’ work and interviews with pupils.   

 Secondary schools should refer to KS3, KS4 and KS5  (Religious Studies and Religious Education) and include 
an evaluation of teacher assessments and/or examination results. 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework Section 1 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education, Welsh 
Government Guidance:  People, Questions and Beliefs (2013), KS2 and KS3 Guidance and Exemplar Profiles (2011), 14-
19 year old Learners (2009), Religious Education: Report of the Chief Moderator (WJEC). 

Standards in Religious Education – progress in learning  
 
 
 
  

Standards in skills:  literacy, numeracy, ICT and thinking 
 
 
 

Areas for Development 
 
 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

 

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Religious Education? 

 A self-evaluation should consider the following indicators: the time allocated to the subject, the subject 
knowledge, expertise and professional development of the teaching staff, the appropriateness of the 
programme of study and the range of learning resources used. 

 An evaluation of lesson observations and pupils’ work will allow schools to make a judgement on the quality 
of the teaching of Religious Education, and the extent to which pupils are motivated and challenged to 
achieve highly. 

 In primary schools references should be made to the provision of ‘People, Beliefs and Questions’ for 
Foundation Phase learners as well as Religious Education at KS2. 

 In secondary schools reference should be made to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious 
Education). 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.1 and 2.2 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education, Welsh 
Government Guidance:  People, Questions and Beliefs (2013), KS2 and KS3 Guidance and Exemplar Profiles (2011), 14-
19 year old Learners (2009), Religious Education: Report of the Chief Moderator (WJEC). 

The teaching: planning and range of strategies 
 
 
 
 

Provision of skills:  literacy, numeracy, ICT and thinking 
 
 
 
 

Areas for Development 
 
 
 
 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

Page 29



 

 22 

 
 

Collective Worship 
Key Question 2: How good is provision in Collective Worship? 
Does Collective Worship meet the statutory requirements? Yes No 

References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.3.1, Supplementary Guidance on inspecting collective worship in non-
denominational schools’ (September 2013), ‘Religious Education and Collective Worship’ (Welsh Office Circular 
10/94), Guidance on Collective Worship (WASACRE 2012) 

Good features in relation to the quality of Collective Worship 
 

Areas for Development in relation to the quality of Collective Worship 
 

Excellent  Good  Adequate  Unsatisfactory  

 
Signed:                           (Head teacher)                                                                              Date:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

 23 

3.6 Guidance for interpreting external examination data  
 
What does the GCSE (full course) table show? 
 

Number of 
candidates 

B G Σ 

This column shows the number of boys (B) and girls (G) who have followed a full GCSE course in 
Religious Studies and who have sat the examination this year.  The Σ symbol shows the total 
number of candidates.  

% Excellence 

B G Σ 
 

This column shows the percentage (%) of boys (B) and girls (G) who have gained an A* or A in 
Religious Studies this year.  The Σ symbol shows the total number of candidates.  

% L2 

B G Σ 
 

The range of qualifications available to candidates has led to a revised method of comparing the 
standards of the various qualifications.  The Level 2 qualification represents A* to C grades in 
GCSE courses.  This column represents the percentage of boys (B) and girls (G) that have achieved 
an A* to C grade in Religious Studies this year.  The Σ shows the total number of candidates. 

% L1 

B G Σ 
 

The range of qualifications available to candidates has led to a revised method of comparing the 
standards of the various qualifications.  The Level 1 qualification represents A* to G grades in 
GCSE courses.  This column represents the percentage (%) of boys (B) and girls (G) that have 
achieved an A* to C grade in Religious Studies this year.  The Σ shows the total number of 
candidates. 

Average 
subject score 

B G Σ 
 

Each grade is worth 6 points.  Therefore an A* grade is equivalent to 58 points and a C grade is 
worth 40 points.  The average score of all the subjects shows how this group of pupils (those who 
have sat Religious Studies in the school) have performed in all their subjects.  .  The total number 
of points gained by the pupils is divided by the number of pupils who have sat the examination n 
the school.  This column therefore represents the average score of boys and girls in Religious 
Studies in the school and in the local authority.  The Σ symbol represents the total number of 
candidates.  

 

What does the GCSE (short course) table show? 
 

Number of 
candidates 

B G Σ 

This column shows the number of boys (B) and girls (G) who have followed a short GCSE course in 
Religious Studies and who have sat the examination this year.  The Σ symbol shows the total 
number of candidates. 
 

% 
Excellence 

B G Σ 
 

 
The range of qualifications available to pupils has led to a revised way of comparing qualification 
standards.  Short courses contribute 10% to the Level 1 and Level 2 threshold.  An A* for the 
short course is worth 29 points.   
 % L2 

B G Σ 
 

% L1 

B G Σ 
 

Average 
subject 
score 

B G Σ 
 

Each grade is worth 6 points.  Therefore an A* grade (short course) is equivalent to 29 points and 
a C grade is worth 11 points. The total number of points gained by the pupils is divided by the 
number of pupils who have sat the examination in the school.  This column therefore represents 
the average score of boys and girls in Religious Studies in the school and in the local authority.  
The Σ symbol represents the total number of candidates.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

 24 

3.7 Gwynedd SACRE Action Plan 2015-17 
 

Gwynedd SACRE Annual 

Report 2014-15/2015-16  

Action points 2016-2017 

LA (Local authority) 

CA (Challenge adviser) 

SM (SACRE members) 

Evidence Outcomes  

Develop good leadership in 
religious education and collective 
worship. 
 

 

 Provide a termly workshop for RE co-

ordinators  (CA) 

 Establish a self evaluation timetable, process 

and procedure  (LA) 

 Scrutinise schools’ self evaluation reports 

and share the main messages in the annual 

report (SM) 

 Self evaluation guidance 

 Self evaluation timetable and 

procedures 

 Schools’ self evaluation reports 

 Minutes of SACRE meetings 

 

 Nearly all schools will have submitted a self 
evaluation report on standards of religious 
education and collective worship by summer 
2017. 

 SACRE  will have prepared a termly and annual 
summative report on the standards of o RE and 
collective worship. 

 
 
 
 
 

‘Successful Futures’ (Donaldson 

Recommendations) and Religious 

Education 

 

 

 Represent Gwynedd in any National 

discussions relevant to developing the new 

curriculum and assessment arrangements ( 

CA+LA+SM) 

 Contribute to any local discussions to plan 

learning experiences that respond to the 

Locally Agreed Syllabus and the principles 

of ‘Successful Futures’ (CA+LA+SM)   

 Minutes of SACRE meetings 

 SACRE correspondence and 

guidance to schools 

 Examples of good practice 

 

 Religious Education given due consideration as 
schools revise the curriculum and assessment 
arrangements. 

 The provision of religious education in all schools 
is good or very good. 

 Standard of religious education in all schools is 
good or very good.   

 
 
 
 
 

Support secondary teachers as 

they prepare and deliver the new 

GCSE RS syllabus 

 

 

 Support secondary RS teachers in any 

discussions with WJEC and Qualifications 

Wales (CA+LA+SM)) 

 Support the work of the Regional RS GCSE 

Leader (Mefys Jones) (SM) 

 Encourage all RS GCSE departments to 

participate in any local or regional school to 

school working groups.  (SM) 

 Minutes of SACRE meetings 

 SACRE correspondence and 

guidance to schools 

 Examples of good practice 

 RS GCSE teachers and candidates feel confident 

in responding to the new GCSE RS syllabus. 

 Schools’ self evaluation reports note that the 

standards and provision of RE and RS at KS4 is 

good or excellent. 

 RS GCSE results are consistently good or very 

good.   

 
 
 
 
 

Promote good quality collective 

worship 

 

 

 

 Ensure that schools conform to the statutory 

requirements and provide good quality 

collective worship. (LA+SM) 

 Encourage schools to invite Gwynedd 

SACRE to attend collective worship 

sessions.  (SM) 

 Correspondence to schools 

 Oral reports of SACRE members 

 References to collective worship 

in ESTYN reports. 

 ESTYN reports note that collective worship is 

good. 

 All schools conform to the statutory requirements 

 Improved understanding to collective worship in 

schools. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 32



 
 
 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education. 
 
A questionnaire for Gwynedd SACRE members as they visit a school collective worship 
session.   
 
 
 
 

I attended a collective worship session in a :  special school  
primary school 
secondary school 

 
I observed a collective worship session attended by: the whole school  

a class 
a key stage/section of the school 

 
Contributing to the collective worship were the :              headteacher 
                                                                                                     pupils 

teachers 
a local religious leader 

       parents 
       governors 
 
The collective worship session lasted:   less than 5 minutes 

between 5-10 minutes 
between 10-15 minutes 
over 15 minutes. 

 
The theme of the collective worship ssession was:  ________________________________________ 
 
I heard a:   
Bible story 
story from another relgious text/tradition 
suitable moral/contemporary/historical story 
pupils praying (individually/together) 
Christian hymn/carol  

song 
adult’s presentation 
pupils’ presentation  
pupils reflecting quietly in response to a  
stimulus. 

 
Underline the three statements that best describe the collective worship session.   
Today, the collective worship session helped to: 

 develop learners’ ability to reflect on their own feelings, values and attitudes;  

 develop learners’ awareness of the inner life and the spiritual dimension of each person;  

 explore and encourage responses to fundamental questions about the meaning of life, change and death; 

 develop beliefs and values, both personal and communal;  

 encourage an understanding of the beliefs and values of others, either locally or globally;  

 increase self esteem and purpose in life;  

 nurture the human ability to make moral choices for good or evil,  

 encourage shared values, meaning and purpose;  

 contribute to the experience of belonging to a community;  

 provide opportunities to reflect on and to share in the ‘happy’ and ‘sad’ events and experiences which effect 
the school community and the local community;  

 support shared understanding of how individual learners and a school may contribute positively to the wider 
community;  

 develop an understanding of global diversity and inequality;  
Page 33

Agenda Item 8



 
Any other comment – 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________( Gwynedd SACRE member) 
 
_________________________________________________________________________(date) 
 

Page 34



 

1 

 

Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru, Y Rhyl, 23 Mehefin 2016 

(10.30am – 3pm) 

Wales Association of SACREs meeting, Rhyl, 23 June 2015 (10.30am – 3pm) 

 

 

Attendance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ynys Môn / Anglesey 

Bethan James 

 

Blaenau Gwent 

Gill Vaisey 

 

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / 

Bridgend 

Edward Evans 

 

Caerffili/ Caerphilly 

 

Caerdydd / Cardiff 

Gill Vaisey 

 

Sir Gaerfyrddin / 

Carmarthenshire  

Mary Parry 

 

Ceredigion 

Lyndon Lloyd 

 

Conwy 

Phil Lord 

Nicholas Richter 

Sir Ddinbych / Denbighshire 

Phil Lord 

 

Sir y Fflint / Flintshire 

Phil Lord 

 

Gwynedd 

Bethan James 

 

Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 

 

Sir Fynwy / Monmouthshire 

Gill Vaisey 

 

Castell-nedd Port Talbot / 

Neath and Port Talbot 

 

Casnewydd / Newport 

Huw Stephens 

 

Sir Benfro / 

Pembrokeshire 

Mary Parry 

 

 

Powys 

John Mitson 

Margaret Evitts 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taf  

Gill Vaisey 

Mathew Maidment 

 

Abertawe / Swansea 

 

Torfaen /Torfaen 

 

Bro Morgannwg / 

Vale of Glamorgan 

Gill Vaisey 

 

Wrecsam / Wrexham 

Libby Jones 

Samantha Jesson 

Ruth Holden 

 

Sylwedyddion / 

Observers 

Tudor Thomas (REMW) 

Abi Williams (Welsh Government) 

Paula Webber 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



 

2 

 

 

Minutes 

 

1. Cyflwyniad a chroeso / Introduction and welcome 

Chair of WASACRE, Phil Lord welcomed members to Rhyl and introduced Head of Education and 

Children’s Services for Denbighshire, Karen Evans. 

Karen Evans welcomed WASACRE members to the Council Chamber in Rhyl and spoke about the 

importance of collaboration and partnership working in Education. Karen Evans acknowledged the 

work of WASACRE and the 22 SACREs in Wales in contributing to this collaboration, which has 

helped to improve the quality of teaching and learning in schools. Karen Evans shared her belief that RE 

remained a pivotal part of the curriculum because of the important skills it develops in young people 

and the life lessons they learn from it, which are often not taught elsewhere. Karen also said that RE 

gives young people the space to make sense of their own place in the world, with empathy, compassion, 

tolerance, and respect. Karen concluded her welcome by wishing WASACRE well in its meeting and 

AGM. 

2. Adfyfyrio tawel / Quiet reflection 

Phil Lord lead a reflection and asked members to consider the important work they were about to 

embark on during the meeting.  

3. Ymddiheuriadau / Apologies  

Tania ap Sion, Christine Abbas, Alwen Roberts, Vicky Thomas, Cllr Ernie Galsworthy, Sue Cave, 

Helen Gibbon and Meinir loader, Jen Malcolm, Cllr Arwel Roberts, Sharon Perry Phillips  

4. Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd yn Hwlffordd, 8 Mawrth 2015 / Minutes of meeting held in 

Haverfordwest, 8 March 2016  

Phil thanked Edward Evans for chairing the meeting in his absence. 

The minutes were accepted as a true record of the meeting. Proposed by Huw Stephens and seconded by 

Gill Vaisey. 

5. Materion yn codi / Matters arising 

P3. Item 5. Matters arising. Libby Jones explained that the link from the WASACRE website to the 

REMW archive material on the Peniarth website is currently being set up and will be available soon. 

P4. Item 5. Matters arising. Libby Jones read out the email WASACRE had received from Lynda 

Maddock (WJEC), informing members that due to issues raised by Qualifications Wales regarding the 

new specification it is now unlikely that the spec would be accredited before September. Lynda gave 

indications of which topics would be safe for teachers to begin with their Year 9 pupils from September 

2016, in preparation for its official implementation in September 2017. Aspects of the new Eduquas 

specification were suggested by Lynda as helpful for this purpose.  Edward Evans proposed that the 

Page 36



 

3 

 

email be sent to SACREs for circulation to schools. Tudor Thomas urged caution as the spec has not yet 

been accredited. A discussion ensued in which the following points were raised:  

Even though the content of the Eduquas RS specification is similar to the new RS specification for 

Wales, the question types might be quite different; therefore teachers need to be aware of that when 

teaching to Year 9 students pre September 2017.  

The new content is considered to be a step backwards by many teachers.  

RE’s place within the curriculum needs to be looked at if the exam is getting so much harder that many 

schools are starting the GCSE RS course in KS3 because they are not giving KS4 RE appropriate time 

on the timetable to cover the specification. 

Disappointment was expressed in the extended delay, which will result in further confusion for schools 

and teachers.  

Short Course is part of the capped point score so it is not in as much danger as it is in England where it 

is not counted at all and so will disappear. 

The RE world has worked hard to attain and maintain the RS Short Course which revolutionised 

statutory RE and it will be a shame for Wales to lose it. 

Mary Parry explained that from her meeting with representatives from WJEC including Chief 

Executive, Gareth Pierce, she can now confirm that retaining a separate short course as well as the new 

specification is not an option. Mary communicated to Gareth Pierce that the new specification is 

unlikely to appeal to the majority of RE students and this could mean that results will go down. If this 

happens it will put RE in a dangerous position in terms of time and status and what the pupils receive. 

Action: LJ will reply to Lynda Maddock to thank her for the information and to ask when schools will 

be officially informed by WJEC of the current situation. LJ will send the information in the email from 

Lynda to SACREs for their information and for circulation to schools. LJ will write to Qualifications 

Wales to express disappointment in the delays and to outline the concerns members have about the 

content of the new specification.  

P4. Item 5. Matters arising. Bursaries for PGCE students. LJ read out the email from Rachel Bendall, 

RS PGCE Course leader at USWTSD, which described the current bursary offer in Wales for RS PGCE 

students compared to England. It became clear to members that Wales cannot compete with England’s 

offer which has resulted in students going across the border to study. Members agreed that WASACRE 

should take this issue to Welsh Government once it has completed some research on the current and 

projected staffing of all RE departments across Wales.  Mary Parry proposed that WASACRE asks 

Rachel to make an enquiry to Vaughan Salisbury about the research he completed some time ago, which 

gave hard data to prove that there would be a shortage of RE teachers in the future.  This data was 

shared with Welsh Government at the time to successfully prove that there was a need to introduce a 

bursary for the training of RE teachers, to avoid this shortage. The Welsh Government subsequently 

introduced this bursary (which has by now been removed).  Members agreed that something similar 

should be done in order to obtain further information and data regarding this situation to inform future 

action.  

Page 37



 

4 

 

Action: LJ will email Rachel to make enquiries. 

P5. Item 5. Matters arising. Humanist representation on SACRE. Humanists requesting representation 

on SACRE could be invited to make a presentation to current members outlining how their co-option 

will positively impact SACRE. The decision to co-opt lies entirely with each individual SACRE. 

P10. Item 10. A.O.B. Incerts. WASACRE wrote to Welsh Government to request a statement which 

could be sent to Incerts to confirm that the RE levels in the National Exemplar Framework are statutory. 

Welsh Government refused to supply WASACRE with a statement due to Incerts being a commercial 

enterprise. 

Mary Parry reminded members of the situation and that the headings for the RE levels within the Incerts 

assessment package used by many schools in Wales are misleading. The Foundation Phase outcomes 

are not on there and Incerts have refused to put them on. All SACREs have notified schools of the 

confusion and have explained which levels are the correct ones to use.  

Action: LJ will ask Welsh Government for a statement which explains the status of the Agreed Syllabus 

levels in RE. 

6. Addysg Grefyddol a'i le o fewn y cwricwlwm newydd / Religious Education and its place within the 

new curriculum 

Gill Vaisey spoke about the meeting between WASACRE Executive representatives and Welsh 

Government representatives Manon Jones and Abi Williams. Gill said that it was a positive meeting in 

which they were able to share concerns over the implications of the new curriculum for Wales, 

including the current nursery provision for RE and withdrawal rights, and to share what good RE might 

look like. Gill assured members that WASACRE will continue to meet with Welsh Government in the 

future to maintain and develop this mutually beneficial relationship. 

A member asked which schools had been chosen as pioneer schools. Phil Lord confirmed that the 

information was available on the Welsh Government website.  

7. Diweddariadau/Up-dates:  

 FEAAG/ EFTRE 

The EFTRE Conference will take place in August 2016, the dates and details for which are on 

the EFTRE website www.EFTRE.net . Phil Lord will be going to the conference, which will 

focus on RE in a multi-cultural world and will aim to help address the anti-terrorism agenda.  

Lots of different workshops will be offered and Phil urged members to circulate the information 

about the conference to teachers in their Local Authorities. 

 Canlyniadau'r Bagloriaeth Cymru ac Arolwg Addysg Grefyddol/ Results of the Welsh 

Baccalaureate and RE Survey  

Libby Jones shared a PowerPoint presentation with members showing the initial results of the 

Welsh Baccalaureate survey. The PowerPoint is available on the WASACRE website 

www.wasacre.org  

Page 38

http://www.eftre.net/
http://www.wasacre.org/


 

5 

 

A discussion ensued in which the following points and questions were raised: 

What percentage of schools from each authority responded to the questionnaire?  

Where the Welsh Baccalaureate Qualification has negatively impacted schools support should be 

given as soon as possible.  

WASACRE should highlight the examples of positive impact and share them as good practice to 

all schools in Wales. 

The current agreed syllabi in Wales (National Exemplar Framework) currently states that KS4 

RE can be offered through ‘other appropriate qualifications (e.g. Key Skills/Welsh 

Baccalaureate)’. Should we be looking at this guidance with a view to re-wording it? 

What are the consequences for not doing statutory RE at KS4? 

The information within the responses from each school should be sent to the appropriate SACRE 

for them to deal with any issues which have been raised and feedback given to WASACRE on 

progress.  

Schools should be formally thanked for responding to the survey. 

Action: LJ to send letter of thanks to the individual schools via their local SACRE. Send 

PowerPoint presentation to SACREs for their information. Feedback the responses to the 

SACREs about their schools for their information. Send information to the RE 

Advisors/SACREs regarding the schools who may not be meeting current statutory requirements 

for RE and request feedback on the Local Authorities’ actions and progress.  

 Canllawiau ar Reoli Hawl Tynnu'n ôl o Addysg Grefyddol/ Guidance on Managing the Right of 

Withdrawal from Religious Education 

Gill gave members the context to the guidance document explaining that it was done on request 

of Headteachers for guidance on withdrawal from RE. NAPfRE have supported Gill on writing 

this Guidance. Headteachers have been involved, as have different Local Authorities in Wales 

and Dilwyn Hunt (chair of AREIAC). The emphasis of the document is on helping Headteachers 

manage the withdrawal from RE. The Exec committee considered making it available as a 

glossy document and on PDF to publish it and have asked the Treasurer if WASACRE would 

support it in terms of funding. It would be a WASACRE sponsored document and WASACRE 

would pay for the design, printing and translation costs.  

The majority of members present at the meeting agreed for WASACRE to give financial support 

to this guidance document.  

It was proposed that the WASACRE website should be improved and up-dated, including the 

WASACRE logo and design style for future WASACRE documents. The majority of members 

voted in agreement of this proposal. 

8. Cyflwyniad NAPfRE / NAPfRE presentation: 

Page 39



 

6 

 

Addoli ar y Cyd a cadw arferion crefyddol mewn Ysgolion / Collective Worship and Religious 

Observance in Schools- Alison Mawhinney and Ann Sherlock 

Alison and Ann gave a presentation on their recent research into Collective Worship across the UK, 

including looking at current legislation. The presentation is available on the WASACRE website. 

www.wasacre.org . Phil thanked Alison and Ann for their presentation and members were invited to ask 

questions. An example of some of the questions asked are as follows: 

Q1. Is there a specific age suggested by the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child that a 

child is capable of making the decision to withdraw themselves from collective worship?  

A. No there is not. However, competence is referred to in convention and schools would have to make 

that decision.   

Q2. When a child is withdrawn from collective worship what activities are deemed to be educational that 

the children can do instead and where is that in the legislation? 

A. It states in International Guidance that the activity should be in line with parental wishes and in line 

with the rights of the child.  

9. Adroddiad ar gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Gwaith a gynhaliwyd ar 10 May 2016 / Report from the Executive 

Committee held on 10 May 2016  

Phil talked about WASACREs relationship with the Religious Education Council for England and Wales 

and plans for further dialogue and collaboration. 

Phil suggested that WASACRE should keep a watching brief on what is happening with the WJEC new 

RE specification which will be implemented in September 2017. 

10. Gohebiaeth /Correspondence 

Libby Jones received an email from Kathy Riddick, development officer of the Wales Humanists on 

April 5 2016 to enquire about how Humanist representation on SACREs can be arranged. Libby Jones 

replied to Kathy to explain the process, a copy of her response was read out at the meeting, and Kathy 

asked to attend one of the future WASACRE meetings. In consultation with Phil, Libby has invited 

Kathy to attend the meeting in Carmarthenshire in November as an observer. 

Libby received an email from a parent from RCT local Authority regarding a possible equality issue 

within his child’s school. Libby read out the email to members who agreed that it was not a WASACRE 

issue and that it would be more helpful to pass it on to RCT SACRE for them to investigate further with 

the school in question. 

Action: LJ will contact the parent to explain that his enquiry is now being dealt with by RCT SACRE 

and RCT SACRE has been advised of the enquiry.  

11. U.F.A. / A.O.B. None. 

12. Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf / Date for next meeting: 18 Tachwedd 2016, Carmarthenshire/ 18 November 

2016, Carmarthenshire.  

Page 40

http://www.wasacre.org/


 

7 

 

The meeting will be held in the Carmarthenshire Council Chamber. 

Dyddiadau cyfarfodydd yn y dyfodol / Future meeting dates: Spring 2017 Monmouthshire; Summer 2017 

Wrexham; Autumn 2017 Bridgend; Spring 2018 Swansea. 

 

Phil Lord brought the meeting to a close and thanked those involved for their contributions. 

Page 41


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	7 GWYNEDD SACRE'S DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
	8 COLLECTIVE WORSHIP
	9 WALES ASSOCIATION OF SACRE

